
VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE 
305 W. Elizabeth Street 

Room #112 

Stockbridge, MI 49285 

(517) 851-7435 

 

 

 

VILLAGE COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
Monday, September 12, 2022 

7:00 PM 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

5. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES 

a. Minutes of Regular Meeting of August 1, 2022 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (agenda items only) 

a. Faith and Other Community Leaders (FOCL) 

 

7. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

a. Check Register Report for August 2, 2022, through _______, 2022,  in the total 

amount of $___________ 

b. Cash Summary by Account Report for All Funds for August 1, 2022, through 

August 31, 2022 

 

8. COMMUNICATIONS 

 

9. DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES 

a. Police Department Monthly Report for August 2022 

 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

a. Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority Development Plan 2022 

Amendment 

  



VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE 
305 W. Elizabeth Street 

Room #112 

Stockbridge, MI 49285 

(517) 851-7435 

 

 

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a. Personnel Committee – Police Chief Recruitment Update 

b. Building Committee – Village Hall 

c. Engineering Services Review Committee – Engineering Proposals Update 

d. Deer Cull Committee 

e. Chicken Ordinance Committee 

 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Amendment to Personnel Policies Manual – Clothing Allowance for Public 

Works Employees 

 

13. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Appointment  – Village Council Vacancy 

b. Appointment of Hunter Lega to Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority 

Board of Directors (Howlett) 

c. Water Billing Concerns – 915 S. Clinton Street; Naomi Carson (Howlett and 

Morehouse) 

d. Ordinance Amendment - Planning Commission Membership Composition 

e. Ordinance – Adoption and Approval of Stockbridge Downtown Development 

Authority Development Plan 2022 Amendment 

f. Ordinance Amendment – Village Manager Duties 

g. Amendment to Personnel Policies Manual – Stand-By Call Stipend 

h. Skate Park Rules Sign – Veterans Memorial Park 

i. Street Closures – Stockbridge High School 2022 Homecoming Parade 

j. Street Closures – 2022 HarvestFest Event 

k. Street Closures – 2022 All Clubs Day 

l. Designation of Voting Delegate and Alternate – MML Annual Convention 

 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT (open forum; 3-minute limit) 

 

15. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

16. ATTORNEY COMMENTS 

 

17. VILLAGE MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

18. CLOSED SESSION MEETING 

 



VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE 
305 W. Elizabeth Street 

Room #112 

Stockbridge, MI 49285 

(517) 851-7435 

 

 

19. ACTION FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 

20. ADJOURNMENT 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

1 1

1 1 1 1 4

1 1

1 1 2

3 5 4 1 2 4 3 3 25

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

Community Engagement 1 1

1 1

1 1 1 1 4

2 2

Assist Outside Agency

STOCKBRIDGE POLICE DEPARTMENT
CALLS FOR POLICE SERVICE

2022

Type of Incident

Abandon Vehicle

Alarm

Animal complaint

Armed/Unarmbed Robbery

Arrest (Misd)

Arrest (Felony 

Arson

Civil Situation

Assist SAESA

Assault & Battery (simple)

Assault -Domestic

Aggravated Assault

Assault - Felonious

Assault GBH

Check Welfare

Breaking & Entering

Child/Adult Abuse & Neglect

Citation Insp

Citizen Asst

Counterfeit

Criminal Sexual Conduct

        (Forcible Rape) 

Curfew Violation

DOA - Sudden Death

Disorderly Person

Domestic Disturbance



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec TotalType of Incident

1 1

Drug Overdose

1 1 2

1 1 2

1 1 2

1 1 2

2 1 1 1 2 18 25

1 1 1 3

1 1

4 4

Larceny of gas

1 2 3 3 9

Larceny (attempt)

1 2 1 4

Littering

1 2 2 5

1 1

Fail To Return Prop

Driving Law Violations

Embezzlement

False Police Report

Family Trouble

Illegal Dumping/Littering

Fire

Fireworks

Flee and Elude

Found/Lost Prop

Fraud

Furnish Alcohol-Minors

General information

Guns-Per/Safety Inspec/Sales

Harassment

Healt & Safety

Immigration

Medical Assist

Indecent Exposure

Invasion of Privacy

Involuntary Commitment

Juvenile Trouble/School Call

K-9 Search

Larceny

LEIN Validation

Liquor Insp

Lockout Service

Malicious Mischief

Malicious Destruction/Property



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec TotalType of Incident

MIP Marihuana 1 1

1 1

Open burning/Ord. Viol

3 4 7

1 1

Retail Fraud 1 1

Sex offense other

1 1 2

2 2

1 1 1 1 2 6

1 1 1 1 4

1 1

1

Ordinance Violation

MIP Tobacco

MIP Alcohol

Missing Person

Motorist Asst

NSF Check

Noise Complaint

Obscenity

Obstructing Police

Open door/window

OWI/OUID

Open Intoxicants

Traffic Crash

Parking Complaint

Private Property Crash

PPO/Conditional Bond

Recovered Stolen Prop

Runaway

Stalking

Sex Offender Viol

Suicide / Att. Suicide

Soliciting w/o Permit

Suspicious Incident

Threats

Traffic Crash Hit/Run

Trespassing

Trouble W/Subjects

Truancy

UDAA/Att. UDAA



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec TotalType of Incident

1 1 2

Welfare Check 1 1

Weapons Complaint 1 1

Misd Traffic 1 1

1 1

12 15 15 8 15 15 15 45 139

3 5 1 1 2 0 1 0 13

2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 5Parking Tickets

Unlawful Entry

Uttering/Publishing

VCSA

911 Hang-UP

Total

Tickets



BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority Tax Increment 
Finance Plan and Development Plan Amendment 2022

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

The Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority (SDDA) is requesting that the village council hold a 
public hearing to receive comments on its proposed Tax Increment Finance Plan Amendment 2022 and to 
adopt an ordinance approving the amendment as presented.  The SDDA determined in 2022 that the TIF 
Plan and Development Plan required additionl amendments to incorporate additional information into the 
plan regarding the SDDA's proposals to include provisions for, among other things, the following:

(1) TIF Map Request for Proposals
(2) Downtown beautification
(3) Southwest quadrant parking lease
(4) vacant lot transfer to te village
(5) Teen center project
(6) Pump track project
(7) Playscape project
(8) Wayfinding signs
(9) Gaga Ball Pit
(10) SDDA Director position
(11) Professional Services Agreement
(12) 5K Run
(13) Miscellaneous office expenses
(14) Small Business Saturday sponsorship
(15) Shop Downtown sponsorship
(16) Day in the Village sponsorship
(17) Printing and publishing
(18) SDDA Zoom account membership costs
(19) Festival of Lights sponsorship
(20) Contractual services
(21) Provide other materials that the SDDA consideers pertinent to how the TIF cature is being expended 
by the Authority

Village and SDDA Attorney John Gormley will be available to answer any questions council may have 
regarding the proposed amendments or the ordinance.



ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:

Proposed Ordinance Approving SDDA TIF Plan and Development Plan Amendment 2022

Page 2 of 2



STATE OF MICHIGAN
VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE

ORDINANCE NO. ___
(Enacted September 12, 2022)

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT AND APPROVE THE 2022 AMENDMENT TO THE
VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S

DEVELOPMENT PLAN  PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ACT 57
PUBLIC ACTS OF MICHIGAN OF 2018, AS AMENDED, 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Village of Stockbridge (“Village”) created the Stockbridge Downtown
Development Authority (“SDDA”) by Ordinance in the mid-1980s and charged it with its
statutory responsibility for developing and implementing a Development Plan.

WHEREAS, the SDDA adopted a proposed Development Plan and Tax Increment Finance Plan
(“Plan”) in the mid-1980s, which was forwarded to the Village and subsequently approved by
Ordinance, pursuant to the provisions of former Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975,
as amended (the “Act”).

WHEREAS, the SDDA and the Village have amended the Tax Increment Finance Plan and/or
the Development Plan on several occasions since its initial adoption to include, among other
things,  new development plans and expand the tax increment finance district.

WHEREAS, the SDDA determined in 2022 that the Tax Increment Finance and Development
Plan required additional amendments to incorporate into it several on going projects and several
proposed future projects.

WHEREAS, the Village determined in 2004 that there were more than 100 persons residing in
the Downtown District, as defined by the former Act.  Therefore, the Village undertook the
following actions:

1. The Village advertised for members to sit on a Development Area Citizens
Council to be formed as required by the Act, but failed to receive any qualified
applicants.

2. The Village declared by Resolution on May 3, 2004 that the Development Area
Citizens Council had failed to organize and determined to proceed with the plan
amendment process outlined in the Act without a Development Area Citizens
Council,  pursuant to its authority under former MCL 124.1674 (4).

Page 1 of  4



WHEREAS, Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975, as amended (the former DDA
“Act”) was replaced by the Michigan Legislature with Act 57 of the Public Acts of Michigan of
2018, as amended (now known as the “Act”).

WHEREAS, the SDDA adopted by Resolution, the 2022 Amendments to the Tax Increment
Finance Plan and Development Plan, on June 30, 2022.  (Attached as Exhibit 1 and incorporated
hereto by reference.)

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing in front of the Village Council to consider amendments
to the Tax Increment Finance Plan and  Development Plan were published in accordance with the
statutory requirements for same and the public hearing was set for September 12, 2022 at 7:00
p.m. at the Village Hall.  

WHEREAS, the Village Clerk provided all the statutory notice for this public hearing on a timely
basis and in compliance with the Act.

ORDINANCE

THEREFORE, THE VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE ORDAINS that:

1. The SDDA’s Development Plan, as proposed to be amended in Exhibit 1 to the
SDDA Resolution of June 30, 2022, is approved after listening to the public
comment at the public hearing on September 12, 2022, reviewing any written
comments,  reviewing the proposed Development Plan Amendments, reviewing
the initial SDDA Plans and all previous amendments thereto, consulting with
bond council of their choosing, and otherwise considering all the relevant facts,
because:

1.1 the Village has determined that the Tax Increment Finance Plan and
Development Plan, as amended, constitutes a public purpose.

1.2 the Village has determined that the Tax Increment Finance Plan and
Development Plan, as amended, meets the requirements set forth in Act
57, P.A. of 2018, specifically including those in MCL 125.4219 (1).

1.3 the Village has determined that the proposed method of financing and
development is feasible and the Authority has the ability to arrange the
financing, as set forth in the Tax Increment Finance Plan and Development
Plan, as amended.

1.4 the Village has determined that the development outlined in the Tax
Increment Finance Plan and Development Plan, as amended, is reasonable
and necessary to carry out the purposes of Act 57, P.A. 2018, as amended.

Page 2 of  4



1.5 the Village has determined that the Tax Increment Finance Plan and
Development Plan, as amended, is in reasonable accordance with the
approved Village Zoning Ordinance and other Plans of the Village of
Stockbridge.

1.6 the Village has determined that the public services (such as police, fire,
and utilities)  are or will (after the improvements outlined in the Tax
Increment Finance and Development Plan, as amended, are implemented)
be adequate to service the development area.

1.7 the Village has determined that any changes to zoning, street levels,
intersections, and utilities outlined in the Tax Increment Finance Plan and
Development Plan, as amended, are reasonably necessary for the projects
and the municipality.

1.8 the Village has previously determined that no Citizens Area Development
Council’s input is required for this Plan Amendment, pursuant to
Resolution of the Village on May 3, 2004.

1.9 [  ]  The above approval is subject to the following modifications to the
Plan, as permitted by MCL 125.4219 (1), to wit:

1.9.1 ____________________________________________________
                                    1.9.2 ____________________________________________________

1.9.3                                                                                                          
1.9.4                                                                                                          

2. Invalidity of Any Section - if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of
this ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such
decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions
of this ordinance.  The Village of Stockbridge declares that it would have passed
this ordinance and each section, subsection, clause or phrase hereof, irrespective
of the fact that any one or more section, subsections, sentences, clauses and
phrases be declared unconstitutional.

3. Effective Date - This ordinance and the related rules, regulations, provisions,
requirements, orders and matters established shall take effect immediately upon
publication, except any penalty provisions which shall take effect twenty (20) days
after publication, pursuant to MCL 66.1; MSA 5.1271.

4. Repealer - All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this ordinance
are repealed only to the extent necessary to give all provisions of this Ordinance

Page 3 of  4



full effect.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the Village Council held on the 12th day of September, 2022.

Moved By:_________________________________________________________

Seconded By:_______________________________________________________

YEAS:__________________________________________________________________

NAYS:__________________________________________________________________

ABSENT:________________________________________________________________

                                                             
Molly Howlett, Village President

Clerk’s Certification

I certify that the above is a true and complete copy of Ordinance No.           adopted by the
Village Council at a meeting held on the 12th day of September, 2022 and published in
_____________ on ____________, 2022.

______________________________________
Debbie L. Nogle, Village Clerk

Drafted by: John L. Gormley (P-53539)
Village of Stockbridge Attorney
Gormley & Johnson Law Offices, PLC
101 East Grand River Ave.
Fowlerville, MI 48836
(517) 223 - 3758

Page 4 of  4



RESOLUTION NO.                       

VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(Enacted June 30, 2022)

A RESOLUTION TO 
APPROVE THE 2022 AMENDMENT

TO THE VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S TAX INCREMENT

FINANCE AND  DEVELOPMENT PLAN,
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ACT 57

PUBLIC ACTS OF MICHIGAN OF 2018, AS AMENDED

WHEREAS, the Village of Stockbridge (hereinafter, the “Village”) created the Stockbridge
Downtown Development Authority (hereinafter, the “SDDA”) by Ordinance in the mid-1980's, and
charged it with its statutory responsibility for developing and implementing a Development Plan;
and

WHEREAS, the SDDA adopted a proposed Development Plan and Tax Increment Finance Plan
(hereinafter, the “Plan”) in the mid-1980's, which was forwarded to the Village and subsequently
approved by Ordinance pursuant to the provisions of Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975,
as amended (hereinafter, the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the SDDA and the Village have amended the Tax Increment Finance Plan and/or the
Development Plan on several occasions since its initial adoption to include, among other things, 
new Development Plans and to expand the Tax Increment Finance District; and

WHEREAS, the SDDA determined in 2022 that the Tax Increment Finance Plan and Development
Plan required additional Amendments to incorporate additional information into it regarding the
SDDA’s proposals to: 1) TIF Map Request for Proposals, 2) Downtown Beautification, 3) Southwest
Quad Parking Lease, 4) Vacant Lot Transfer to Village, 5) Teen Center Project, 6) Pump Track
Project, 7) Play Scape Project, 8) Way Finding Signs, 9) Gaga Ball Pit, 10) SDDA Director, 11)
Professionals Services Agreement, 12) 5K Run, 13) Misc. Office Expenses, 14) Small Business
Saturday Sponsorship, 15) Shop Downtown Sponsorship, 16) Day in the Village Sponsorship, 17)
Printing and Publishing, 18) SDDA Zoom Account Membership Costs, 19) Festival of Lights
Sponsorship, 20) Contractual Services,  and 21) provide other materials that the Authority considers
pertinent to how the TIF capture is being expended by the Authority, amongst other things.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority 2022
Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan Amendment to Incorporate New Projects
and/or Expand Existing Projects, as attached hereto as Addendum 1, is approved by the SDDA and
is to be submitted to the Village for approval, in accordance with the Act.

Page 1 of  2

EXHIBIT 1



Moved By:                                                                            .

Seconded By:                                                                        .

Adopted at a rescheduled Regular Meeting of the Village of Downtown Development Authority held
on the 30th day of June, 2022.

YEAS:                                                                                                                                                

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Village of Stockbridge
Downtown Development Authority

By: Daryl Anderson
Its: Chairperson

CERTIFICATION

I certify that the above is a true and complete copy of Resolution No. __________
adopted by the Village of Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority at a
reschedule Regular Meeting held on the 30th day of June, 2022.

Village of Stockbridge
Downtown Development Authority

By: Jon Filmore
Its: Secretary of SDDA

Drafted by:  John L. Gormley (P53539)
Attorney for the Village of Stockbridge DDA
Gormley and Johnson Law Offices, PLC 
101 East Grand River Avenue
Fowlerville, Michigan 48836

517.223.3758

C:\Users\John\TRFC\Matters - Open\SDDA\SDDA - Plan Amendment 2022\Resolution 2022 Plan Amemdment amended 6 30 22.wpd

Page 2 of  2







































































































BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Amendment to Personnel Policies Manual - Clothing Allowance for 
Public Works Employees

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

Village Manager McClary is requesting that council adopt a resolution amending the Village of Stockbridge 
Personnel Policies Manual to provide for the payment of an annual clothing allowance for certain public 
works employees on a reimbursement basis for work clothing and work boots.

On May 9, council discussed providing an allowance of $300 annually but wanted more information to 
determine if that amount was adequate.  Village Manager McClary has obtained information from the 
MME listserv indicating that the average annual allowance for public works clothing and work boots is 
approximately $400 combined and is recommending this amount.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

APPROVE THE AMENDMENTS TO THE PERSONNEL POLICIES MANUAL AS RECOMMENDED OR IN ANOTHER 
AMOUNT PROVIDING FOR THE DPW CLOTHING ALLOWANCE.
If council adopts the policy changes, the village will provide an annual clothing allowance to each full time 
regular employee and each part-time employee regularly working at least 20 hours on a reimbursement or 
direct purchase basis.

DENY THE REQUEST OR TAKE NO ACTION.
If council denies the request or takes no action, then employees will not be reimbursed for clothing 
replacement costs.

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
05/09/2022 - Council discussed establishing a clothing allowance of $300 annually per public works 
employee; tabled action until it could be determined whether a $300 allowance was adequate.

08/01/2022 - Council discussed draft policy amendment and tabled action on the matter until the draft 
could be revised to require the return of any clothing bearing the Village of Stockbridge logo.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The cost to the village would be up to $400 annually for each public works employee.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:



To adopt the resolution amending the Village of Stockbridge Personnel Policies Manual to add a new 
Section 5.03 - Public Works Clothing Allowance.

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution Amending Personnel Policies Manual - Public Works Clothing Allowance

Page 2 of 2



VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE 

COUNTY OF INGHAM 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 

VILLAGE COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

 

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE PERSONNEL 

POLICIES MANUAL TO ADD A NEW SECTION 5.03 – PUBLIC WORKS CLOTHING 

ALLOWANCE. 

 

WHEREAS, presenting a professional image of its employees to the public is an important 

consideration for the Village of Stockbridge; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to the unique nature of the work performed by the Department of Public Works 

employees, the wear and tear such work imposes on the work clothes, and the need for adequate 

safety resulting from such work, the village deems it necessary to provide a clothing allowance for 

public works employees; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village Council of the Village of 

Stockbridge does hereby amend the Village of Stockbridge Personnel Policies Manual to add 

Section 5.03 to read as follows: 

 

5.  CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION 

 

5.03  Public Works Clothing Allowance 

 

The village will provide an annual clothing allowance of four hundred dollars ($400.00) 

per fiscal year on a reimbursement basis to all Department of Public Works full time regular 

employees and part-time employees regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours 

per week to be used for the purchase, maintenance, cleaning, and replacement of work 

clothing and safety boots.  Work clothing is defined as shirts, hats or caps, pants, 

windbreakers, jackets, coats, and similar clothing items appropriate to the types of work 

performed as approved by the Village Manager.  Such clothing will comply with any 

standards established by the Village Manager for professionalism in appearance and for 

functionality and safety.  Work boots will be standard steel-toed work boots commonly 

used in the construction industry.  Employees are required to submit receipts for purchases 

or, alternatively, may arrange for the village to order clothing items and to pay directly for 

such items.  Any unused portion of the annual clothing allowance will not be carried over 

to the next fiscal year.  All clothing with the official Village of Stockbridge logo affixed 

thereto shall be immediately returned to the village upon separation from employment. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Village Clerk is hereby directed to immediately update 

the Village of Stockbridge Personnel Policies Manual to incorporate this change. 



Page 2 

 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED BY THE STOCKBRIDGE VILLAGE COUNCIL 

AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD ON ____________, 2022. 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Debbie Nogle 

Village Clerk 



BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Appointment to Vacant Village Council Trustee Position

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

Council is scheduled to consider appointing a qualified elector to fill the vacancy of the unexpired term of 
office created by the passing of Trustee Anne Moceri.  The term of office for this position expires on 
November 20, 2022.  The village posted an announcement of the vacancy and opportunity to apply on its 
web site.  The village has received one (1) application from resident Linda Dyer.

Section 13 of the Michigan General Law Village Act, Public Act 3 of 1895, as amended, sets forth the 
process for filling council vacancies and states as follows:

62.13 Vacancies; filling; special elections; procedure; expenses.
Sec. 13. A vacancy occurring in the office of president, trustee, or any other elective office shall be filled
by appointment by the council, and the appointee shall hold office until the next regular village election. All
vacancies in any other office shall be filled by the president, by and with the consent of the council. If by
reason of removal, death, resignation, or otherwise, the membership of the council is reduced to less than a
quorum, the remaining council members shall call a special election for the purpose of filling all vacancies in
the office of trustee, if a petition signed by not less than 10% of the qualified voters of the village is filed 
with
the village clerk within 10 days after the vacancy or vacancies occur. If a petition is not filed within the time
stated, then the remaining council members may either call a special election, or may appoint a sufficient
number of trustees to constitute with the members in office a quorum of the council, who shall then fill the
remaining vacancies as provided in this section. If all the officers and trustees of a village have died or 
moved
from the village, and no successors have been elected or appointed to fill the vacancies, the township clerk 
of
the township within which the village is situated shall, upon petition of 10% of the qualified voters residing 
in
the village, call a special election for the election of the officers and trustees of the village to be held on a
regular election date as established under section 641 of the Michigan election law, 1954 PA 116, MCL
168.641. The township shall perform all of the other duties with respect to the election as the village might
have done had the vacancies not existed, including the preparation of ballots, the appointment of election
inspectors, the counting and canvassing of the ballots, and the certification of the persons elected to the
offices for which the election was held. The expenses of the election shall be paid by the village as provided
in section 642 of the Michigan election law, 1954 PA 116, MCL 168.642.



Attached is an application for the council trustee position that was submitted previously to Village 
President Howlett by resident Linda Dyer, 4005 Eastbridge Circle Road.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
08/01/2022 - Consensus of council was to advertise position for a couple weeks, review applications 
received, and make an appointment to the position.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

To appoint ________________ as village trustee to fill the unexpired term of office created by the recent 
passing of Trustee Anne Moceri, with said term of office to expire on November 20, 2022.

ATTACHMENTS:

Application for Appointment to Council - Linda Dyer

Page 2 of 2









BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Appointment of Hunter Lega to Stockbridge Downtown 
Development Authority Board of Directors

RESOLUTION NO.:

Molly Howlett

President/Trustee

Village President Howlett is requesting the village council's approval of her appointment of Hunter Lega to 
the Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority board of directors.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

To be provided by President Howlett

ATTACHMENTS:

Application for Appointment to Board or Commission - Hunter Lega - DDA











BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Ordinance Amendment - Planning Commission Membership 
Composition

RESOLUTION NO.:

John Gormley

Attorney

Village Attorney Gormley is requesting that village council amend the ordinance creating the planning 
commission to permit members of the commission to serve on other boards and commissions of the 
village.  Currently, village code prohibits planning commissioners from serving on other boards and 
commission, with the exception that one member of the commission may also serve on the Zoning Board 
of Appeals.  At least one member of the planning commission is serving on other boards and commissions 
in violation of village code.

Attached is a copy of the E-mail correspsondence between the Village Attorney and Village Manager 
regarding this matter for the information of council.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

ADOPT THE ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMPOSITION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO PERMIT 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS TO SERVE ON OTHER BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS.
Amending the village code would eliminate the conflict that currently exists with at least one member of 
the plannng commission, who is currently serving on another board or commission..

TAKE NO ACTION.
If council opts to take no action, the current ordinance language would remain in effect, and any planning 
commissioner serving on other boards and commissions, other than the BZA, would need to decide 
whether they wish to continue serving on the planning commission and resign from other boards and 
commissions or resign from the planning commission and retain their positions on other boards or 
commissions.

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:



To adopt the ordinance amending Chapter 2, Article VII - Planning Commission to eliminate the 
prohibition of planning commission members serving simultaneously on other boards or commissions of 
the village.

ATTACHMENTS:

Email Correspondence dated July 5, 2022 - Village Attorney and Village Manager

Proposed Ordinance Amending Planning Commission Membership Composition

Page 2 of 2



1

Darwin McClary

From: Darwin McClary <manager@vosmi.org>

Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 2:01 PM

To: 'John Gormley'

Subject: RE: Planning Commission Makeup

John: 

You may wish to present this to the village council for consultation as to whether they desire to change the ordinance.  If 
they indicate that they do, we can work to prepare an amendatory ordinance.  Did you want this on the July 11 meeting 
agenda for discussion? 

Darwin D. P. McClary 
Village Manager 
305 West Elizabeth Street, Room 107 
PO Box 155 
Stockbridge, MI 49285 
(517) 851-7435 - Main 
(517) 851-7055 – Direct 
(517) 851-2631 - Mobile 
www.vosmi.org

From: John Gormley <john@gormleylaw.onmicrosoft.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2022 4:17 PM 
To: Darwin McClary <manager@vosmi.org> 
Subject: Planning Commission Makeup 

Darwin: 

Looking at 2-245 about composition of planning commission.  We are not following the Ordinance, as Daryl sits on 
Planning Commission and DDA.  I think we need to fix the Ordinance, which was done in 2005.  The Ordinance reads: 

Sec. 2-245. - Composition. 

The commission shall consist of five members who shall be appointed by the chairperson of the village council 
subject to approval by a majority vote of the members of the village council. All members of the commission 
shall hold no other municipal office except that one of the commission members may be a member of the 
zoning board of appeals. The term of each member shall be three years. All members shall hold office until their 
successors are appointed. A member may, after a public hearing, be removed by the chairperson for 
inefficiency, neglect of duty, or malfeasance in office. Vacancies occurring otherwise than through the 



2

expiration of a term, shall be filled for the unexpired term by the chairperson subject to approval by a majority 
vote of the village council.  

(Ord. No. 05-09-05, § 2, 9-6-2005)  

MCL 125.3815 controls the makeup of the board of a planning commission and does not require the highlighted 
info above.  We should consider amending this Ordinance. 

John L. Gormley (P-53539) 
Gormley & Johnson Law Offices, PLC 
101 East Grand River Ave. 
Fowlerville, MI  48836 
(517) 223-3758  (office) 
(517) 223-8233 (fax) 
(517) 719-7391 (cell) 
e-mail:  john@gormleylaw.net
web page:  http://www.gormleylawoffices.com

Follow us on Facebook

Member of the National                           American Institute of Family 
               Association of Distinguished                                        Law Attorneys 
               Counsel 

           2020 Member American Association 
           Of Attorney Advocates – Top Ranking 
           Family Law Attorney 

Notices to Recipients: 
1. Among the many other legal services we provide clients of the firm, we are a debt relief agency, helping people file 
bankruptcy under the United States Bankruptcy Code. 
2. This electronic mail message is meant for only the intended recipient of the transmission, and it may be a privileged 
communication by law. If you receive this electronic mail message in error, any review, use, dissemination, distribution, 
or copying of this electronic mail message is strictly prohibited. Please notify user immediately of the error by returning 
electronic mail message and please delete this message from your system. 
3. Neither the text, the typed name of the sender, nor anything else in this message is intended to constitute an electronic 
signature unless a specific statement to the contrary is included in the text of the message. 



3

4. IRS mandated disclosure: If this e-mail or any attachment(s) involves tax advice that constitutes a "covered opinion" 
under IRS Circular 230 principles, then you may not rely on this advice to avoid potential imposition of penalties unless 
we expressly state that you may do so. 



ORDINANCE NO.           

VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE
(Enacted September 12, 2022)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 2, 
ARTICLE VII -PLANNING COMMISSION

The Village of Stockbridge, Michigan ordains:  

SECTION 1: Chapter 2, Article VII, Sections 2-245 are amended to the Village of Stockbridge

Code of Ordinances to read as follows:

Section 2.245. - Composition.

The commission shall consist of five members who shall be appointed by the chairperson

of the village council subject to approval by a majority vote of the members of the village

council.  The term of each member shall be three years. All members shall hold office

until their successors are appointed.  A member may, after a public hearing, be removed

by the chairperson for inefficiency, neglect of duty, or malfeasance in office. Vacancies

occurring otherwise than through the expiration of a term, shall be filled for the

unexpired term by the chairperson subject to approval by a majority vote of the village

council. 

SECTION 2: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is, for any

reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity or

constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The Village of Stockbridge

declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, clause, or phrase

hereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsections, sentences, clauses, and

phrases be declared unconstitutional.

SECTION 3: That this Ordinance and the related rules, regulations, provisions, requirements,

orders, and matters established shall take effect immediately upon publication, except any

penalty provisions which shall take effect twenty (20) days after publication, pursuant to

MCL 66.1.

SECTION 4: Repealer - All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance

are repealed only to the extent necessary to give all provisions of this Ordinance full effect.

Adopted at a rescheduled regular meeting of the Village of Stockbridge held on

September 12, 2022.

Page 1 of  2



Moved by: __________________________ 

Seconded by:_________________________                                                                                     

                            

YEAS:                                                                                                                                                

NAYS:                                                                                                                                                

ABSENT:                                                                                                                                           

ABSTAIN:                                                                                                                                         

     

Village of Stockbridge

                                                   

By:  Molly Howlett

Village President

Certification of Clerk

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of an Ordinance adopted by the

Village Council of the Village of Stockbridge, County of Ingham, State of Michigan, at a

rescheduled regular meeting held on the 12th day of September, 2022, with the meeting being

conducted and public notice of the meeting given pursuant to, and in full compliance with the

Open Meetings Act, being PA 267 of 1976, MCL 15.261 et al., and that the Minutes of the

meeting were kept and made available as required by said Act, and the foregoing Ordinance was

published in a newspaper of local circulation on ________________________, 2022.

Village of Stockbridge 

                                                              

By: Debbie Nogle

Its: Village Clerk

Drafted by:  John L. Gormley (P53539)

Attorney for the Village of Stockbridge

Gormley and Johnson Law Offices, PLC

101 Grand River Ave., Fowlerville, Michigan 48836

(517) 223-3758

Email:  “ john@gormleylaw.net”

C:\Users\John\TRFC\Matters - Open\Village of Stockbridge\Stockbridge - Ordinances\Ordinance Planning Commission Composition 9 12 2022.wpd

Page 2 of  2

mailto:�john@gormleylaw.net�


BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Ordinance - Adoption and Approval of Stockbridge Downtown 
Development Authority Development Plan 2022 Amendment

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

The Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority (SDDA) is requesting that the village council adopt an 
ordinance approving the SDDA's Development Plan 2022 Amendment as presented after conducting a 
public hearing on the same.  The SDDA determined in 2022 that the TIF Plan and Development Plan 
required additionl amendments to incorporate additional information into the plan regarding the SDDA's 
proposals to include provisions for, among other things, the following:

(1) TIF Map Request for Proposals
(2) Downtown beautification
(3) Southwest quadrant parking lease
(4) vacant lot transfer to te village
(5) Teen center project
(6) Pump track project
(7) Playscape project
(8) Wayfinding signs
(9) Gaga Ball Pit
(10) SDDA Director position
(11) Professional Services Agreement
(12) 5K Run
(13) Miscellaneous office expenses
(14) Small Business Saturday sponsorship
(15) Shop Downtown sponsorship
(16) Day in the Village sponsorship
(17) Printing and publishing
(18) SDDA Zoom account membership costs
(19) Festival of Lights sponsorship
(20) Contractual services
(21) Provide other materials that the SDDA consideers pertinent to how the TIF cature is being expended 
by the Authority

Village and SDDA Attorney John Gormley will be available to answer any questions council may have 
regarding the proposed amendments or the ordinance.



ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

Please consult with Village Attorney Gormley.

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None to the village

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

To adopt the ordinance adopting and approving the 2022 amendments to the Village of Stockbridge 
Downtown Development Authority's Development Plan pursuant to the provisions of Act 57 of the Public 
Acts of Michigan of 2018, as amended.

ATTACHMENTS:

Proposed Ordinance - Approval of SDDA TIF Plan Amendment 2022

Page 2 of 2



STATE OF MICHIGAN
VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE

ORDINANCE NO. ___
(Enacted September 12, 2022)

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT AND APPROVE THE 2022 AMENDMENT TO THE
VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S

DEVELOPMENT PLAN  PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ACT 57
PUBLIC ACTS OF MICHIGAN OF 2018, AS AMENDED, 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Village of Stockbridge (“Village”) created the Stockbridge Downtown
Development Authority (“SDDA”) by Ordinance in the mid-1980s and charged it with its
statutory responsibility for developing and implementing a Development Plan.

WHEREAS, the SDDA adopted a proposed Development Plan and Tax Increment Finance Plan
(“Plan”) in the mid-1980s, which was forwarded to the Village and subsequently approved by
Ordinance, pursuant to the provisions of former Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975,
as amended (the “Act”).

WHEREAS, the SDDA and the Village have amended the Tax Increment Finance Plan and/or
the Development Plan on several occasions since its initial adoption to include, among other
things,  new development plans and expand the tax increment finance district.

WHEREAS, the SDDA determined in 2022 that the Tax Increment Finance and Development
Plan required additional amendments to incorporate into it several on going projects and several
proposed future projects.

WHEREAS, the Village determined in 2004 that there were more than 100 persons residing in
the Downtown District, as defined by the former Act.  Therefore, the Village undertook the
following actions:

1. The Village advertised for members to sit on a Development Area Citizens
Council to be formed as required by the Act, but failed to receive any qualified
applicants.

2. The Village declared by Resolution on May 3, 2004 that the Development Area
Citizens Council had failed to organize and determined to proceed with the plan
amendment process outlined in the Act without a Development Area Citizens
Council,  pursuant to its authority under former MCL 124.1674 (4).

Page 1 of  4



WHEREAS, Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975, as amended (the former DDA
“Act”) was replaced by the Michigan Legislature with Act 57 of the Public Acts of Michigan of
2018, as amended (now known as the “Act”).

WHEREAS, the SDDA adopted by Resolution, the 2022 Amendments to the Tax Increment
Finance Plan and Development Plan, on June 30, 2022.  (Attached as Exhibit 1 and incorporated
hereto by reference.)

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing in front of the Village Council to consider amendments
to the Tax Increment Finance Plan and  Development Plan were published in accordance with the
statutory requirements for same and the public hearing was set for September 12, 2022 at 7:00
p.m. at the Village Hall.  

WHEREAS, the Village Clerk provided all the statutory notice for this public hearing on a timely
basis and in compliance with the Act.

ORDINANCE

THEREFORE, THE VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE ORDAINS that:

1. The SDDA’s Development Plan, as proposed to be amended in Exhibit 1 to the
SDDA Resolution of June 30, 2022, is approved after listening to the public
comment at the public hearing on September 12, 2022, reviewing any written
comments,  reviewing the proposed Development Plan Amendments, reviewing
the initial SDDA Plans and all previous amendments thereto, consulting with
bond council of their choosing, and otherwise considering all the relevant facts,
because:

1.1 the Village has determined that the Tax Increment Finance Plan and
Development Plan, as amended, constitutes a public purpose.

1.2 the Village has determined that the Tax Increment Finance Plan and
Development Plan, as amended, meets the requirements set forth in Act
57, P.A. of 2018, specifically including those in MCL 125.4219 (1).

1.3 the Village has determined that the proposed method of financing and
development is feasible and the Authority has the ability to arrange the
financing, as set forth in the Tax Increment Finance Plan and Development
Plan, as amended.

1.4 the Village has determined that the development outlined in the Tax
Increment Finance Plan and Development Plan, as amended, is reasonable
and necessary to carry out the purposes of Act 57, P.A. 2018, as amended.

Page 2 of  4



1.5 the Village has determined that the Tax Increment Finance Plan and
Development Plan, as amended, is in reasonable accordance with the
approved Village Zoning Ordinance and other Plans of the Village of
Stockbridge.

1.6 the Village has determined that the public services (such as police, fire,
and utilities)  are or will (after the improvements outlined in the Tax
Increment Finance and Development Plan, as amended, are implemented)
be adequate to service the development area.

1.7 the Village has determined that any changes to zoning, street levels,
intersections, and utilities outlined in the Tax Increment Finance Plan and
Development Plan, as amended, are reasonably necessary for the projects
and the municipality.

1.8 the Village has previously determined that no Citizens Area Development
Council’s input is required for this Plan Amendment, pursuant to
Resolution of the Village on May 3, 2004.

1.9 [  ]  The above approval is subject to the following modifications to the
Plan, as permitted by MCL 125.4219 (1), to wit:

1.9.1 ____________________________________________________
                                    1.9.2 ____________________________________________________

1.9.3                                                                                                          
1.9.4                                                                                                          

2. Invalidity of Any Section - if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of
this ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such
decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions
of this ordinance.  The Village of Stockbridge declares that it would have passed
this ordinance and each section, subsection, clause or phrase hereof, irrespective
of the fact that any one or more section, subsections, sentences, clauses and
phrases be declared unconstitutional.

3. Effective Date - This ordinance and the related rules, regulations, provisions,
requirements, orders and matters established shall take effect immediately upon
publication, except any penalty provisions which shall take effect twenty (20) days
after publication, pursuant to MCL 66.1; MSA 5.1271.

4. Repealer - All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this ordinance
are repealed only to the extent necessary to give all provisions of this Ordinance

Page 3 of  4



full effect.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the Village Council held on the 12th day of September, 2022.

Moved By:_________________________________________________________

Seconded By:_______________________________________________________

YEAS:__________________________________________________________________

NAYS:__________________________________________________________________

ABSENT:________________________________________________________________

                                                             
Molly Howlett, Village President

Clerk’s Certification

I certify that the above is a true and complete copy of Ordinance No.           adopted by the
Village Council at a meeting held on the 12th day of September, 2022 and published in
_____________ on ____________, 2022.

______________________________________
Debbie L. Nogle, Village Clerk

Drafted by: John L. Gormley (P-53539)
Village of Stockbridge Attorney
Gormley & Johnson Law Offices, PLC
101 East Grand River Ave.
Fowlerville, MI 48836
(517) 223 - 3758

Page 4 of  4



RESOLUTION NO.                       

VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(Enacted June 30, 2022)

A RESOLUTION TO 
APPROVE THE 2022 AMENDMENT

TO THE VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S TAX INCREMENT

FINANCE AND  DEVELOPMENT PLAN,
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ACT 57

PUBLIC ACTS OF MICHIGAN OF 2018, AS AMENDED

WHEREAS, the Village of Stockbridge (hereinafter, the “Village”) created the Stockbridge
Downtown Development Authority (hereinafter, the “SDDA”) by Ordinance in the mid-1980's, and
charged it with its statutory responsibility for developing and implementing a Development Plan;
and

WHEREAS, the SDDA adopted a proposed Development Plan and Tax Increment Finance Plan
(hereinafter, the “Plan”) in the mid-1980's, which was forwarded to the Village and subsequently
approved by Ordinance pursuant to the provisions of Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975,
as amended (hereinafter, the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the SDDA and the Village have amended the Tax Increment Finance Plan and/or the
Development Plan on several occasions since its initial adoption to include, among other things, 
new Development Plans and to expand the Tax Increment Finance District; and

WHEREAS, the SDDA determined in 2022 that the Tax Increment Finance Plan and Development
Plan required additional Amendments to incorporate additional information into it regarding the
SDDA’s proposals to: 1) TIF Map Request for Proposals, 2) Downtown Beautification, 3) Southwest
Quad Parking Lease, 4) Vacant Lot Transfer to Village, 5) Teen Center Project, 6) Pump Track
Project, 7) Play Scape Project, 8) Way Finding Signs, 9) Gaga Ball Pit, 10) SDDA Director, 11)
Professionals Services Agreement, 12) 5K Run, 13) Misc. Office Expenses, 14) Small Business
Saturday Sponsorship, 15) Shop Downtown Sponsorship, 16) Day in the Village Sponsorship, 17)
Printing and Publishing, 18) SDDA Zoom Account Membership Costs, 19) Festival of Lights
Sponsorship, 20) Contractual Services,  and 21) provide other materials that the Authority considers
pertinent to how the TIF capture is being expended by the Authority, amongst other things.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority 2022
Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan Amendment to Incorporate New Projects
and/or Expand Existing Projects, as attached hereto as Addendum 1, is approved by the SDDA and
is to be submitted to the Village for approval, in accordance with the Act.

Page 1 of  2

EXHIBIT 1



Moved By:                                                                            .

Seconded By:                                                                        .

Adopted at a rescheduled Regular Meeting of the Village of Downtown Development Authority held
on the 30th day of June, 2022.

YEAS:                                                                                                                                                

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Village of Stockbridge
Downtown Development Authority

By: Daryl Anderson
Its: Chairperson

CERTIFICATION

I certify that the above is a true and complete copy of Resolution No. __________
adopted by the Village of Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority at a
reschedule Regular Meeting held on the 30th day of June, 2022.

Village of Stockbridge
Downtown Development Authority

By: Jon Filmore
Its: Secretary of SDDA

Drafted by:  John L. Gormley (P53539)
Attorney for the Village of Stockbridge DDA
Gormley and Johnson Law Offices, PLC 
101 East Grand River Avenue
Fowlerville, Michigan 48836

517.223.3758

C:\Users\John\TRFC\Matters - Open\SDDA\SDDA - Plan Amendment 2022\Resolution 2022 Plan Amemdment amended 6 30 22.wpd

Page 2 of  2



BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Ordinance Amendment - Village Manager

RESOLUTION NO.:

John Gormley

Attorney

Village Attorney Gormley is requesting that the village council adopt an ordinance amending village code 
relating to the village manager position to place the Chief of Police and Police Department position under 
the supervision and control of the Village Manager.  This change is proposed as a result of the departure of 
former Police Chief Johnnie Torres.  Village code currently states, in part, the following as relating to the 
duties of the Village Manager:

(3) Exercise supervisory control and direction over the marshall, police department (if provided for in the 
contract between the chief of police and the council), the department of public works, and street 
commissioner;

The proposed amendatory ordinance also clarifies that the Department of Public Works, Zoning 
Administrator, Construction Code Officials, and Street Commissioner will also be under the supervision and 
control of the Village Manager.

Village Attorney Gormley will be available to answer any questions council may have regarding the 
proposed ordinance.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

To adopt the ordinance amending Chapter 2, Article II - Officers and Employees - to amend the Village 
Manager Ordinance to place the Chief of Police, Police Department, Department of Public Works, Zoning 
Administrator, Code Code Officials, and Street Commissioner under the supervision and control of the 
Village Manager.



ATTACHMENTS:

Proposed Ordinance - Amendment to Village Manager Ordinance

Page 2 of 2



ORDINANCE NO.           

VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE
(Enacted September 12, 2022)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 2, 
ARTICLE II - OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

TO AMEND THE VILLAGE MANAGER ORDINANCE

The Village of Stockbridge, Michigan ordains:  

SECTION 1. Chapter 2, Article II, Sections 2-46 - 2-54 are added to the Village of Stockbridge

Code of Ordinances to provide for a Manager is amended to read as follows:

Section 2.46. Intent and purpose.

This division establishes the office of Village Manager, provides for the Manager’s

appointment, compensation, and discharge, specifies the branches of the Village government and

activities under the management and control of the Manager and limits the rights, powers, and

liabilities of the Manager.

Section 2.47. Office established.

Pursuant to the authority for the appointment of such Village officers as the council

deems necessary for the execution of the powers granted to the village contained in Section 2 of

Chapter II and Section 8 of Chapter V of  Act No. 3 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1895, the

General Village Act, as amended, (MCL 62.2 and 65.8), the office of Village Manager is

established.

Section 2.48. Selection and Qualifications.  

(1) The Manager shall be selected on the basis of administration and executive

abilities with special reference to training and practical experience.

Section 2.49. Appointment.

The president shall appoint the Manager, with the concurrence of four or more trustees,

for an indefinite term (not to exceed 6 years by statute) and the council may, by contract, enter

into such other terms and conditions as the Manager and council deem appropriate.  The

Manager shall serve at the pleasure of the council and may be removed by the affirmative vote of

Page 1 of  6



four or more trustees, but only after a hearing before the council.  The president may, for cause,

suspend the Manager with full pay, until a hearing.  The action of the council in removing the

Manager shall be final.

Section 2.50. Acting Manager.

The president, with concurrence of four or more trustees, shall appoint or designate an

acting manager during any vacancy in the office, and shall make a permanent appointment within

180 days from the effective date of the vacancy.  In the absence of a manager or an acting

manager, the Village President shall fulfill the duties of the manager.  If the President is absent,

the President Pro Tempore shall fulfill the duties of the manager, per MCL 65.3 (2).

Section 2.51. Compensation.  

The Manager shall receive such compensation as the council shall determine annually by

resolution or contract.

Section 2.52.  Duties.

The Manager shall be Chief Administrator Officer of the Village and shall be responsible

to the council for the efficient administration of all affairs of the Village and shall exercise

management supervision over all departments and over all public property belonging to the

Village.  In addition, the Manager shall perform the following functions and duties:

(1) Attend all meetings of the council and committees thereof and take part but

without a vote;

(2) Be responsible for personnel management and shall issue, subject to council

approval, personnel rules applicable to all Village employees and in so doing may:

1. Appoint, suspend or remove any appointed administrative officers and

department heads, subject to council approval;

2. Recommend to the council the salary or wages to be paid each

administrative official;

3. Appoint, suspend or remove all other employees of the Village, based on

merit, and pursuant to personnel rules approved by the council;

Page 2 of  6



(3) Exercise supervisory control and direction over the Chief of Police, the Police

Department, the Department of Public Works, the Zoning Administrator, the

Construction Code Officials, and Street Commissioner;

(4) Exercise supervisory responsibility over the accounting, budgeting, personnel,

purchasing and related management functions of the Clerk and Treasurer;

(5) Be authorized to attend all meetings of the Village Boards and Commissions,

including the Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, and Downtown

Development Authority with the right to take part but without a vote;

(6) Prepare and administer the annual budget as provided for the in the Uniform

Budgeting and Accounting Act, Act No. 2 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1968,

as amended (MCL 141.421 et seq.);

(7) Be the purchasing agent of the Village;

(8) Prepare and maintain an administrative code defining the duties and functions of

the several officers and departments of the Village, subject to approval by the

council;

(9) Investigate all complaints concerning the administration of the Village, with the

authority at all times to inspect the books, records and papers of any agent,

employee or officer of the Village;

(10) Make recommendations to the council for the adoption of such measures as may

be deemed necessary or expedient for the improvement or betterment of the

Village; and

(11) Perform other duties required from time to time by the council, or this Code.

Section 2.53. Purchasing Responsibilities.   

(a) The Manager shall act as purchasing agent for all Village officers and

departments.  The Manager may delegate some or all of the duties as purchasing

agent to another officer or employee provided that such delegation shall not

relieve the Manager of the responsibility for the proper conduct of those duties.

Page 3 of  6



(b) The Manager shall have the authority to purchase any product or services the cost

of which does not exceed an amount established annually by the council provided

that funds have been appropriated.  The cost of the product or service shall not

exceed the unencumbered balance of the appropriation for that account.  Except as

provided below, the Manager shall not purchase any product or service the cost of

which exceeds the amount without prior approval of the council.  The Manager

may promulgate rules governing the purchase of products or services.

( c) The Manager shall have the authority to purchase any product or service

regardless of its cost when such purchase is necessitated by an emergency

condition.  “Emergency condition” means any event which presents an imminent

threat to the public health or safety, or any event which would result in the

disruption of a Village service essential to the public health or safety.

6.54. Authority. 

Neither the council nor the President shall attempt to influence the employment of any

person by the Manager or in any way interfere in the management of departments under the

jurisdiction of the Manager.  Except for the purpose of inquiry, the President and council and its

members shall deal with departments under the jurisdiction of the Village Manager through the

Manager.

Secs. 2-55 - 2-60. -  Reserved.

SECTION 2: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is, for any

reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity or

constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The Village of Stockbridge

declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, clause, or phrase

hereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsections, sentences, clauses, and

phrases be declared unconstitutional.

SECTION 3: That this Ordinance and the related rules, regulations, provisions, requirements,

orders, and matters established shall take effect immediately upon publication, except any

penalty provisions which shall take effect twenty (20) days after publication, pursuant to

MCL 66.1.

SECTION 4: Repealer - All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance

are repealed only to the extent necessary to give all provisions of this Ordinance full effect.

Page 4 of  6



Adopted at a rescheduled regular meeting of the Village of Stockbridge held on

September 12, 2022.

Moved by: __________________________ 

Seconded by:_________________________                                                                                     

                            

YEAS:                                                                                                                                                

NAYS:                                                                                                                                                

ABSENT:                                                                                                                                           

ABSTAIN:                                                                                                                                         

     

Village of Stockbridge

                                                   

By:  Molly Howlett

Village President

Certification of Clerk

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of an Ordinance adopted by the

Village Council of the Village of Stockbridge, County of Ingham, State of Michigan, at a

rescheduled regular meeting held on the 12th day of September, 2022, with the meeting being

conducted and public notice of the meeting given pursuant to, and in full compliance with the

Open Meetings Act, being PA 267 of 1976, MCL 15.261 et al., and that the Minutes of the

meeting were kept and made available as required by said Act, and the foregoing Ordinance was

published in a newspaper of local circulation on ________________________, 2022.

Village of Stockbridge 

                                                              

By: Debbie Nogle

Its: Village Clerk

Page 5 of  6



Drafted by:  John L. Gormley (P53539)

Attorney for the Village of Stockbridge

Gormley and Johnson Law Offices, PLC

101 Grand River Ave., Fowlerville, Michigan 48836

(517) 223-3758

Email:  “ john@gormleylaw.net”

C:\Users\John\TRFC\Matters - Open\Village of Stockbridge\Stockbridge - Ordinances\Ordinance Village Manager 9 12 2022.wpd

Page 6 of  6

mailto:�john@gormleylaw.net�


BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Amendment to Personnel Policies Manual - On-Call Stipend for 
Public Works Employees

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

Village Manager McClary is requesting that village council approve an amendment to the Village of 
Stockbridge Personnel Policies Manual to provide a stipend for those employees while they are on-call.

The policy would ensure that a public works employee is always available to respond timely to public works 
emergencies.  Many communities provide a stipend for DPW employees to be on-call.  After consultation 
with other municipal colleagues, Village Manager McClary has determined that a $100 per week stipend is 
fair compensation for employees to serve on-call.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

APPROVE THE AMENDMENT TO THE PERSONNEL POLICIES MANUAL.
If council approves the amendment to the Personnel Policies Manual, employees would serve on-call on a 
weekly rotating basis, thereby ensuring that the village will have access to an employee during non-working 
hours if an emergency should arise.  The village would incur additional costs for this security.

DENY THE REQUEST OR TAKE NO ACTION.
If council denies the request or takes no action, the village cannot be assured that DPW employees would 
be available to respond to emergencies in a timely manner.  Lack of response could be detrimental or 
dangerous to the community in the event of a major emergency.

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The additional cost to the village would be $5,200 annually plus the village's portion of payroll taxes on the 
stipend ($398.00) for a total annual cost of $5,598.00.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

To adopt the resolution approving an amendment to Section 5.06a of the Village of Stockbridge 
Personnel Policies Manual to provide a weekly stipend to employees serving on stand-by call status and 
to require that employees carry a village-provided mobile phone while on stand-by call status and to 



report to work within one hour of being called to work.

ATTACHMENTS:

Proposed Amendment to Section 5.06a of the Personnel Policies Manual

Page 2 of 2



VILLAGE OF STOCKBRIDGE 
COUNTY OF INGHAM 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

VILLAGE COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND SECTION 5.06a – STAND-BY CALL OF THE VILLAGE 
OF STOCKBRIDGE PERSONNEL POLICIES MANUAL TO PROVIDE A WEEKLY 
STIPEND FOR EMPLOYEES SERVING ON STAND-BY CALL STATUS. 

WHEREAS, ensuring the safety and security of the community and its buildings, grounds, 
facilities, and infrastructure is of the utmost importance and priority; and 

WHEREAS, due to the unique nature of the work performed by certain village employees, it is 
necessary and appropriate to provide fair compensation for such employees who are required to 
serve on stand-by call status; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village Council of the Village of 
Stockbridge does hereby amend Section 5.06(a) of the Village of Stockbridge Personnel Policies 
Manual to read as follows: 

5.  CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION 

5.06a  Stand-by Call 

A weekly and weekend stand-by call list will be established.  Employees will be rotated on 
the stand-by call list.  Employees on stand-by call shall be available to be contacted by 
telephone on a village-provided mobile phone from quitting time until the start of the 
next regularly scheduled shift, but are free to do as they please until called upon, provided 
that they are able to report to work within one (1) hour if called.  All effort will be made 
to insure that no employee will be required to be on stand-by call for consecutive holiday 
weekends unless it is the employee’s request.  Employees will be receive a weekly stipend 
for time served on stand-by status as determined annually by the Village Manager 
and as appropriated by the village council in the annual budget.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Village Clerk is hereby directed to immediately update 
the Village of Stockbridge Personnel Policies Manual to incorporate this change. 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS DULY ADOPTED BY THE STOCKBRIDGE VILLAGE COUNCIL 
AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD ON ____________, 2022. 



Page 2 

_______________________________________ 
Debbie Nogle 
Village Clerk 



BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Approval of Skate Park Rules Sign - Veterans Memorial Park

RESOLUTION NO.:

Daryl Anderson

DDA

The Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority is requesting approval from the village council to 
remove the existing skate ramp rules sign and replace it with a new sign in the same location as part of the 
skate ramp replacement project scheduled to be completed later during the week of September 12.  The 
sign is constructed of aluminum material with vinyl lettering  with duplicate verbiage on both sides.  Village 
Manager McClary determined that the sign removal and replacement require village council approval due 
to the fact that the sign is located on village property.

Attached is a copy of the sign permit application that has been submitted to the Zoning Administrator for 
approval.  A variance from the sign regulations will be necessary since the proposed sign does not meet 
current sign regulations.  Also attached are copies of the proposed sign location map and sign verbiage 
detail.

DDA Vice Chair Anderson will be available to answer any questions council may have regarding this request.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None to the village

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

To approve the request from the Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority to remove the existing 
skate ramp rules sign in Veterans Memorial Park and to construct a new sign at the same location in 
accordance with the DDA's sign installation permit application dated August 3, 2022, and sign location 
map and sign verbiage detail submitted to the village council, with the approval contingent upon the 
DDA obtaining all necessary variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals prior to any work being 
commenced.

ATTACHMENTS:



Skate Park Sign Replacement Application

Page 2 of 2



































BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Street Closure - 2022 Stockbridge High School Homecoming Parade

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

Stockbridge High School Principal is requesting approval from the village council to close the following 
village streets on Friday, October 12, 2022, from 6:00 PM to 6:45 PM, for the Annual Stockbridge High 
School Homecoming Parade:
---S. Wood Street at the Middle School
---W. Elizabeth Street from S. Wood Street west to West Street
---West Street from W. Elizabeth Street north to W. Main Street
---W. Main Street east to S. M-106
---S. M-106 south to E. Elizabeth Street
---E. Elizabeth Street east to S. Center Street
---S. Center Street north to M-106

Attached is the letter of request from Stockbridge High School Principal Jeff Trapp.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The village may incur some expense relating to police and public works services for traffic control.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

To approve the request from Stockbridge High School to approve a permit for the close of certain streets 
on Friday, October 7, 2022, from 6:00 PM to 6:45 PM for the 2022 Stockbridge High School Homecoming 
Parade, contingent upon approval of the closures by the Police Chief and SAESA, as follows:
---S. Wood Street at the Middle School
---W. Elizabeth Street from S. Wood Street west to West Street
---West Street from W. Elizabeth Street north to W. Main Street
---W. Main Street east to S. M-106
---S. M-106 south to E. Elizabeth Street



---E. Elizabeth Street east to S. Center Street
---S. Center Street north to M-106

ATTACHMENTS:

Letter of Request for Street Closures - Stockbridge High School Homecoming Parade 2022

Page 2 of 2







BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Stockbridge HarvestFest Street Closures and Use of Village Property

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

Stockbridge HarvestFest Co-Chair Jill Ogden is requesting that village council approve a request to close 
South Center Street from East Main Street south to East Elizabeth Street and East Elizabeth Street from 
South Clinton Street east to South Center Street from 8:00 AM to 10:00 PM on Saturday, October 1, 2022, 
for the annual Stockbridge HarvestFest event.  Ms. Ogden is also requesting permission to use village public 
works property as a route to shuttle participants between activities downtown and the south end of the 
village.

Attached is the letter of request and supporting information regarding this matter.  Ms. Ogden will be in 
attendance at Monday's meeting to answer questions.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The village could potentially incur up to four (4) hours of overtime costs for a public works employee to 
open and close the gates to the public works property during the event.  The total cost would be less than 
$100.00.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

#1 - To approve the request from the Stockbridge HarvestFest Committee to close South Center Street 
from East Main Street south to East Elizabeth Street and East Elizabeth Street from South Clinton Street 
east to South Center Street from 8:00 AM to 10:00 PM on Saturday, October 1, 2022, for the annual 
Stockbridge HarvestFest event.

#2 - To approve the request from the Stockbridge HarvestFest Committee to use village public works 
property as indicated on their submitted map as a route to shuttle festival participants between event 
locations subject to the following conditions: (1) the committee must provide a certificate of liability 
insurance for the vent naming the village as additional insured and must execute an agreement holding 



the village harmless for any claims of damage or injury resulting from event activities; (2) the approval 
for the use of village public works property shall be subject to the determination of the 
water/wastewater operator in charge that there are no water/wastewater facility security concerns 
relating to the use of the property; and (3) the police chief and SAESA shall give final approval to street 
closures, routes, and emergency personnel and vehicle access to all areas of the event.

ATTACHMENTS:

Letter of Request for Street Closures and Shuttle Route - Harvest Moon Festival

Street Closure Map - Harvest Moon Festival

Shuttle Route Map - Harvest Moon Festival

Page 2 of 2



 
Village of Stockbridge 
305 W. Elizabeth 
Stockbridge, MI 49285 
 
Stockbridge Township 
Stockbridge Harvest Fest  
125 S. Clinton 
Stockbridge, MI 49285 
 
To the Village Council 
 
 Hello, we are contacting you about the upcoming Harvest Fest being held on October 1, 2022.  
We will be having activities on the town square and would like to close S. Center and E. Elizabeth streets 
from 8am-10pm.  There will also be activities on the south end of town at Lantis Plaza, Lakeland Trail 
Veterinarian and SAESA. The two locations will be connected by a Hayride shuttle that will run between 
Lantis Plaza and Town Hall. We would like to run the shuttle around the back side of town to keep it off 
S. Clinton when possible. In order to do this, we are requesting the DPW open the gate located by the 
water treatment plant.  Please see attached maps for road closures and shuttle rout. We will be 
attending the September 12 meeting to present the festival and answer any questions. 
Thank you for your assistance. 
Jill Marie Ogden 
Stockbridge Harvest Fest 22 Cochair. 
 







BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Street Closures - All Clubs Day 2022

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

Suzi Greenway is requesting that the village council approve the closure of certain village streets and 
assistance from the Department of Department works for the 2022 All Clubs Day event to be held on 
September 18, 2022.  The street closures would be from 6:00 AM until 4:00 PM as follows:

---N. Center Street from E. Herbert Street south to E. Main Street
---S. Center Street from E. Main Street south to E. Elizabet Street
---E. Elizabeth Street from S. Clinton Street east to S. Center Street
---W. Elizabeth Street from Wood Street east to S. Clinton Street
---Wood Street from W. Elizabeth Street south to Vernal Street

Assistance from the Department of Public Works would include the delivery and removal of rolling garbage 
bins, barricades, cones, and picnic tables.  Public Works could deliver the items on Friday and remove them 
on Monday to avoid overtime costs.  The organization would be responsible for setting barricades and 
cones up at appropriate locations and times and for removing them from roadways.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The village will incur costs associated with police and public works services.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

#1 - To approve the request to close the following streets from 6:00 AM until 4:00 PM on Sunday 
September 18, 2022, for the All Clubs Day events, subject to approval from the Police Chief and SAESA as 
to safety and emergency services access:
---N. Center Street from E. Herbert Street south to E. Main Street
---S. Center Street from E. Main Street south to E. Elizabet Street
---E. Elizabeth Street from S. Clinton Street east to S. Center Street



---W. Elizabeth Street from Wood Street east to S. Clinton Street
---Wood Street from W. Elizabeth Street south to Vernal Street

#2 - To approve assistance from the Department of Public Works for the 2022 All Clubs Day event for the 
delivery and removal of rolling garbage bins, barricades, cones, and picnic tables.  Public Works will 
deliver the items on Friday and remove them on Monday to avoid overtime costs.  The organization will 
be responsible for setting barricades and cones up at appropriate locations and times as approved by 
the Police Chief and SAESA and for removing them from roadways to safe locations after the event.

ATTACHMENTS:

Request from Suzi Greenway for Street Closures and DPW Assistance - 2022 All Clubs Day

Page 2 of 2











BOARD ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE:

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

SUBMITTED BY:

DEPARTMENT:

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:

BOARD MEETING Council

9/12/2022

Designation of Voting Delegate - Michigan Municipal League 
Annual Convention

RESOLUTION NO.:

Darwin McClary

Manager

The Michigan Municipal League is requesting that village council determine whether one or more officials 
of the village will be attending the Michigan Municipal League annual convention and to appoint one 
official as the principal official representative of the village to cast the vote of the village at the annual 
meeting and one to as alternate official representative.  The MML convention is being held in Muskegon on 
October 19-21, 2022.  The League's Annual Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, October 19, 2022, at 4:30 
PM.

Attached is additional information regarding the designation of a voting delegate and alternate.

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS:

N/A

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:
None

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The village may incur expenses relating to the attendance of one or more village officials at the MML 
Annual Convention.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

To appoint ______________ as the Village of Stockbridge principal official representative to cast the 
vote of the village at the Michigan Municipal League 2022 Annual Meeting and to appoint 
______________ as the village's alternate official representative.

ATTACHMENTS:

MML Correspondence re: Designation of Voting Delegate








